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LSE VENTURES LIMITED

Vision Statement

To accelerate the supply of new market investable companies

Mission Statement

To source and manage portfolio companies for optimal returns to our shareholders
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Chairman’s Review

Dear Esteemed Shareholders,

It is my distinct pleasure to present the Chairman’s Review for LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL) for the
financial year ended June 30, 2025.

The financial year 2024-2025 presented a shifting market landscape that demanded strategic agility. I am
pleased to report that LSEVL successfully adapted its strategies, reinforcing our core mandate as a premier
investment company. Our focus remains firmly on equity-oriented investments in emerging and growth-
stage companies, providing critical financing to catalyze future expansion, while prudently overseeing the
portfolio of legacy equity investments inherited from the erstwhile LSE.

Our prime objectives throughout the year centered on enhancing shareholder wealth through sound
investment decisions and seeking strategic partnerships for mutual growth. The Company’s performance
was therefore marked by pivotal corporate actions designed not only to weather current market conditions
but, more importantly, to significantly strengthen our capital base for future diversification and strategic
plays. In the period immediately following the financial year end, the Board undertook decisive corporate
actions to position LSEVL as a more active and liquid player in the market. Effective September 1, 2025, the
Company executed a sub-division of its ordinary shares. This action changed the face value of our shares
from PKR 10/- to PKR 5/-. This was implemented to double the total number of outstanding shares, thereby
enhancing liquidity and improving market accessibility for both existing and prospective investors, while
maintaining the paid-up capital base.

On September 12, 2025, the Board announced a plan to issue 40,000,000 Right Shares at par value (PKR 5/-
each), aimed at raising PKR 200 million. This crucial capital raising effort is specifically intended to establish
a dedicated pool for portfolio diversification. This pool will allow LSEVL to become an active player in the
Special Purpose Acquisition Company (SPAC) market and private equity, with a sharp emphasis on
securing early-stage investment opportunities and growth-oriented companies.

LSEVL holds the historical capital market infrastructure investments of the former Lahore Stock Exchange.
Our investment portfolio thus maintains significant and strategic stakes in key national entities, including
the Central Depository Company (CDC), National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL), The
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX), and Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA). These
holdings continue to represent stable foundational assets for the Company. In adherence to our commitment
to excellence, the Board diligently performed its duties, providing strategic oversight and ensuring effective
governance practices. We conducted an annual self-evaluation focusing on continuous improvement in
business opportunities, risk management, and oversight mechanisms.

I extend my heartfelt appreciation to our exceptional Management team for their unwavering dedication
and tireless efforts, which are central to the Company’s success. We remain proactively engaged in exploring
new, value-accretive investment avenues for the ultimate benefit of our stakeholders, continually
implementing best practices and policies across the organization.

I'would like to thank our dedicated employees, the entire Board of Directors, our shareholders, business
partners, and all stakeholders for their sustained confidence and invaluable support during this pivotal
year. With collective effort and trust in Allah Almighty, we look forward to addressing future challenges
with confidence and capitalizing on the opportunities that lie ahead.

Thank you.

-Sd-
Chairman
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LSE VENTURES LIMITED

Directors’” Report

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors of LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL) is pleased to present its report, together with the
audited financial statements and Auditors’ report thereon, for the year ended June 30t, 2025.

Economic Review FY 2024-25

The global economic landscape continues to be shaped by moderation, with projected world growth slowing
to 2.8% in 2025 amid rising geopolitical tensions, trade frictions, and heightened exchange rate volatility.
Despite this volatile international backdrop, the domestic economy of Pakistan maintained its upward
trajectory in FY 2025, recording an annual GDP growth of 2.68%, driven by effective macroeconomic
management and a stabilization across key indicators. Crucial to this turnaround was the sharp reduction
in inflation. Fiscal discipline also saw marked enhancement, highlighted by the achievement of a historic
primary surplus of 3.0% of GDP for July-March FY 2025. On the external front, the account witnessed a
remarkable reversal, shifting to an unprecedented US$ 1.9 billion surplus during July-April FY 2025,
supported by improved export performance and record remittance inflows, setting a firm foundation for a
higher growth path.

This stabilization directly translated into a significant revival of investor confidence, most notably in the
capital markets, where Pakistan's equity market outperformed world stock markets. The benchmark KSE-
100 Index registered a phenomenal growth of 57.79%, surging from 78,824 points to 124,379 points. This
unprecedented performance is attributed to robust corporate earnings, the declining policy rate, and the
stable macroeconomic environment. Broadly, investor activity is underscored by a 27.5% rise in company
incorporations and the industrial sector demonstrated resilience, posting a growth of 4.77% in FY 2025,
driven by a recovery in the manufacturing segment.

Performance Review
The company's performance during the 2024-2025 financial year was marked by key corporate actions aimed
at strengthening its capital base and strategic investments.

LSEVL is a premier investment company focused on equity-oriented investments in emerging and growth-
stage companies. Our primary objective is to provide critical financing to catalyze future growth, while also
overseeing a portfolio of legacy equity investments made by the erstwhile LSE.

Key Corporate & Strategic Developments in 2025:

1. Stock Split (Sub-Division of Shares):
o Effective September 1, 2025, the company executed a stock split, changing the face value of its
shares from PKR 10/- to PKR 5/-.
o This action doubled the total number of outstanding shares while the paid-up capital remained
unchanged, typically aimed at improving liquidity and market accessibility.

2. Right Shares Issue Announced:
o On September 12, 2025, the Board announced a plan to issue 40,000,000 Right Shares at par
value (PKR 5/- each), totaling PKR 200 million.
o The purpose is to establish a capital pool for portfolio diversification, focusing on becoming an
active player in the SPAC market and private equity, with an emphasis on early-stage
investment opportunities and growth-oriented companies.
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3. Cancellation of Sukuk Issuance:
The earlier announced plan to issue Redeemable and Convertible Sukuk amounting to PKR 2,100
million was cancelled in September 2025. This was due to the investee entity, JJVL (Jamshoro Joint
Venture Limited), having already entered into alternative financing arrangements.

4. Investment Portfolio:

o As an investment company holding the legacy capital market infrastructure investments of the
former Lahore Stock Exchange (LSE), LSEVL maintained significant stakes in key entities like
the Central Depository Company (CDC), National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
(NCCPL), The Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) and Pakistan Credit Rating
Agency (PACRA).

o The Board has appointed M/s. Next Capital Limited as the sell-side advisor for the valuation
and disposal of 10% equity in each of CDC and NCCPL.

o During the year, LSE Ventures Limited (the “Seller”) entered into a Mutual Buy Out Agreement
(MBO) dated January 12, 2025, with a group of individual shareholders of PACRA, namely Mr.
Mumtaz Hussain, Mr. Sardar Ali Wattoo, Mr. Usman Haider, and Mr. Adnan Afaq (the
“Buyers”), with Mr. Mumtaz Hussain acting as the Buyer's Agent and guarantor.

The MBO was for the sale of the Seller's entire shareholding in PACRA, comprising 26.830
million shares, for an aggregate consideration of Rs. 600 million. The consideration was to be
paid over a period of five years in ten equal semi-annual instalments of Rs. 60 million each. The
payments were primarily to be made through the Buyers assigning their dividends from
PACRA to the Seller, with any shortfall or non-distribution of dividends guaranteed by Mr.
Mumtaz Hussain. The shares were placed in a blocked account with the Central Depository
Company (CDC) as the Escrow Agent.

The Buyers' Group and PACRA made the first gross payment of Rs. 60 million (net receipt of
Rs. 51 million after withholding tax). In accordance with the MBO and Escrow agreements, 2.683
million shares (10% of the total) were released from the blocked account and transferred to the
Buyers. However, the payment for 27 Instalment of Rs. 60 million, which was due on March 01,
2025, was not made by the Buyers' Group or the guarantor. This non-payment constituted a
fundamental breach of the MBO terms and conditions by the Buyers Group with the following
violations:
¢ Violation of the principle of the assignment of dividend against the first payment and
illegal confiscation of the sum of PKR 3.7 million.
e As a licensed company, non-compliance towards getting SECP’s prior approval for
MBO.
¢ Failure to the payment for 274 Instalment of Rs. 60 million, which was due on March 01,
2025.
e Failure to honor the guarantee component and a significant deviation from the agreed
payment timeline.
e TFailure to disclose the schedule of its contractual payments in the financial statements
of PACRA.
e Failure to the payment for next Instalment, which was due on September 01, 2025.

Consequently, on June 30, 2025, the Board of Directors of LSE Ventures Limited decided to
terminate the MBO and the co-terminus Escrow Agreement with immediate effect. The
remaining 24.147 million shares (90% of the total) remain in the blocked account. The
termination was implemented without prejudice to any other remedies available to the Seller
under the MBO and Escrow Agreements.
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Now the matter of termination of the MBO Agreement and Escrow Agreement as decided by
the Board of Directors have been placed as a special resolution before the general body, to solicit

its ratification by the shareholders in the AGM.

Financial Performance

Rupees in '000' 2025 2024
Operating Income 466,265 285,582
Other Income 14,885 8,961
Share of profit of Associates 37,291 129,131
Admin & General Expenses (139,911) (126,692)
Finance Cost (2,666) (6,809)
Profit before Taxation 375,864 290,173
Taxation (167,311) (103,066)
Net Profit 208,553 187,107
Equity + Revaluation Surplus 2,655,737 2,442,149
Total Asset 3,275,790 2,857,020
Net Asset 2,655,738 2,442,149
Total Liability 620,053 414,871
Shares outstanding (Nos.) 179,598 179,598
Earnings per share EPS 1.16 1.04

Proposed Final Cash Dividend
In view of profitable results of the Company, the directors have recommended a final cash dividend of Rs.
0.50 per share for the year ended June 30t%, 2025, for the approval of the shareholders in the AGM.

External Auditors

The present auditors, M/s. KRESTON Hyder Bhimjee & Co., Chartered Accountants, are retiring at the
conclusion of the current term. The matter of appointment/re-appointment of the auditors and their
remuneration has been referred to the shareholders for approval in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) for
the next term.

Internal Financial Control
The Board has adequately ensured that the system of internal financial controls is sound in design and has
been effectively implemented and monitored through its Internal Auditor.

The financial statements, prepared by the management of your company, fairly present its state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. Proper books of account have been maintained
by your company. Appropriate accounting policies are consistently applied by your Company in the
preparation of financial statements, and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment. International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the
preparation of these financial statements and any departure there from, if any, has been adequately
disclosed. The system of Internal Control, being implemented in your Company is sound and has been
effectively persisted throughout the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility & Environmental Management

The Company remained committed and engaged to undertake CSR and Environmental Management
programs during the year. LSEVL focused its activities on education, health care and protection of
environment programs. LSEVL endeavors to ensure that it qualifies as a responsible corporate citizen.
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Anti-Harassment

The Company has a comprehensive mechanism towards anti-harassment to ensure that any type of
workplace harassment is dealt with a zero-tolerance to ensure that all the employees of the company
regardless of their gender and position avail the opportunity to work in a safe and respectful environment.
Employees are encouraged to report such grievances to the HR department in a confidential to conduct fair
investigations.

Gender Pay-Gap

The Company is committed that all employees of the company are treated with equality & fairness and there
should be no gender pay gap within the Company. Accordingly, the compensation of employees is
determined on the basis of experience, seniority, responsibilities and performance without any gender-based
discrimination.

1 Mean Gender Pay Gap 78.79%
2 Median Gender Pay Gap 53.85%

In compliance with section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017, the followings are hereby specifically
disclosed:
a. The names of the persons who, at any time during the financial year, were directors of the Company:

Sr. | Name of Director Category Meeting Held | Attended
1| Mr. Muhammad Iqbal Chairman/Non-Executive 5 3
Director

2 | Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chief Executive Officer 5 5
3 | Ms. Aasiya Riaz Non-Executive Director 5

4 | Dr. Zahid Mahmood Independent Director 5 5
5 | M- Muhammad Tabassum Independent Director 5 5

Munir

6 | Mr. Muhammad Iqbal** Non-Executive Director 5 1
7 | Mr. Shahbaz Zaheer Independent Director 5 2
8 | Mr. Amir Zia* Non-Executive Director 5 3

*  Mr. Amir Zia resigned on June 20, 2025
**  Mr. Muhammad Igbal appointed on June 24, 2025

The names of the current Board of Directors, consequent to the Election of the Board of Directors in
the EOGM of the Company held on August 16, 2025 are:

Sr. | Name of Director Category

1 Mr. Muhammad Igbal Chairman/Non-Executive Director
2 | Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chief Executive Officer

3 | Ms. Aasiya Riaz Executive Director

4 | Sardar Shahbaz Igbal Ahmed Khan Non-Executive Director

5 | Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir Independent Director

6 | Ms. Mehr Saleem Independent Director

7 | Mr. Muhammad Saleem Ahmad Ranjha Independent Director

b. The principal line of business of the Company is to invest in shares, bonds, stocks, units of mutual
funds or any other securities or its related instruments, or otherwise in all types of real assets and in
such manner as may from time to time be determined by the Company and to hold, or sale such real
assets, shares, bonds, stocks, units of mutual funds or any other securities or its related instruments,
subject to the compliance with applicable law.
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This business is exposed to serval threats such as credit risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, market
risk and regulatory risk, economic uncertainty etc. Furthermore, venture capital is a high-risk, high-
reward type of investment, and there is no guarantee of success.

Risk Management policies and procedures adopted by the Company enable it to proactively manage
uncertainty and changes in internal and external environment to limit negative impacts and
capitalize on opportunities. The profitability of the Company is also influenced by the overall
economic, geo-political conditions of the country, policies of the Government and the performance
of associated companies as well as the capital markets.

c. At present the Chief Executive Officer is being paid the salary and such other benefits as approved
by the Board under the Articles of Association and as per HR Manual of the Company. No other
director is being paid any extra remuneration by the Company, except the meeting fee for attending
the Board and Committee meetings. The relevant figures have been disclosed in the financial
statements.

In compliance with the Regulation No. 34(2) of the with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, the following information is provided: -

1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following: -

a. Male: 5
b. Female: 2

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: -
i. Independent directors: Mr. M. Tabassum Munir
Mr. Muhammad Saleem Ahmad Ranjha

Ms. Mehr Saleem

ii. Non-Executive directors: Mr. Muhammad Igbal
Sardar Shahbaz Igbal Ahmed Khan

iii. Executive director: Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chaudhry
Ms. Aasiya Riaz

iv. Female director: Ms. Mehr Saleem
Ms. Aasiya Riaz

3. Board Committees
During the year, the Board constituted following committees to assist the Board and provide

recommendations on relevant functions:

Audit Committee:

Sr. No. Name Status
1. Mr. Muhammad Saleem Ahmad Ranjha Chairman
2. Sardar Shahbaz Igbal Ahmed Khan Member
3. Mr. M. Tabassum Munir Member
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Human Resources & Remuneration and Compensation Committee:

Sr. No. Name Status
1. Mr. M. Tabassum Munir Chairman
2. Sardar Shahbaz Igbal Ahmed Khan Member
3. Ms. Mehr Saleem Member

Future Outlook

LSE Venture Limited actively oversees its investments in associates and strategic holdings, pursuing optimal
returns through informed and cautious decision-making. Amidst the prevailing challenging socio-economic
and investment environment, our focus remains on mitigating risks and unlocking opportunities to drive

long-term value creation.

-Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 1, 2025
At Lahore

-Sd-

Director
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LSE VENTURES LIMITED

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate

Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: LSE Ventures Limited
Year ended: June 30, 2025

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-

4.

10.

11.

The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following,-

a. Male: 5
b. Female: 2

The composition of the Board is as follows: -

ii. Independent directors: Mr. M. Tabassum Munir
Mr. Muhammad Saleem Ahmad Ranjha
Ms. Mehr Saleem

ii. Non-Executive directors: Mr. Muhammad Igbal
Sardar Shahbaz Igbal Ahmed Khan

iii. Executive director: Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chaudhry
Ms. Aasiya Riaz

iv. Female director: Ms. Mehr Saleem
Ms. Aasiya Riaz

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed
companies, including this company;

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board;

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and the Regulations;
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Two (2) Directors out of seven (7) Directors have the prescribed certification under the Directors’
Training Program. Moreover, One (1) Director qualify for exemption of certification requirement by
virtue of his qualification and experience on the Board of listed companies. The Company shall
arrange Directors’ Training Program for remaining directors in due course;

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and

complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:-

a) Audit Committee:

Sr. No. Name Status
4. Mr. Muhammad Saleem Ahmad Ranjha Chairman
5. Sardar Shahbaz Iqbal Ahmed Khan Member
6. Mr. M. Tabassum Munir Member

b) Human Resources & Remuneration and Compensation Committee:

Sr. No. Name Status
4. Mr. M. Tabassum Munir Chairman
5. Sardar Shahbaz Igbal Ahmed Khan Member
6. Ms. Mehr Saleem Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the Committees were as per following:-

a) Audit Committee - Quarterly
b) Human Resources & Remuneration and Compensation Committee — At least once in a
year.

The Board has appointed the resource for the internal audit function while considering suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company;

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
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20.

21.

22.

-Sd-

children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirements
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that during the FY ended June 30%, 2025, the applicable and relevant requirements of
regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations were complied with.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and
36 are below:

Regulation No. 19:

The directors required to acquire the director training, shall be arranged to have their director
training program certification within the next period of one year, as required under the relevant
regulations.

Regulation No. 29(1):

The responsibilities as prescribed for the Nomination Committee are being taken care of at Board
level as and when needed, so a separate committee is not considered to be necessary at present.

Regulation No. 30(1):

The Board has tasked the Audit Committee to oversee Risk Management related matters of the
Company, therefore a separate committee has not been constituted.

Section 131 of the Companies Act:

The Company was incorporated in 2022 as a wholly owned subsidiary of LSEFSL. Its initial directors
were appointed by LSEFSL. Subsequently, the Company entered into a Scheme of Arrangement and
merger/de-merger with LSEFSL and other entities. This scheme was implemented in 2023 after being
sanctioned by the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. The Company's first Annual General
Meeting was held in 2023. Following the completion of term of the Board, an election for a new
Board was conducted in August 2025

Regulation No. 6(3):

As explained above, the Company was incorporated in 2022 as a public-unlisted company being a
wholly owned subsidiary of LSEFSL. The initially appointed directors continued as the directors of
the Company till election for a new Board in August-2025. Accordingly, the newly elected directors
have submitted their consents to act as director and declaration of independence.

Signature
Chairman

Lahore.

Date: November 01, 2025
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5 IFIED W REPORT
To the members of LSE Ventures Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of LSE Ventures
Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Qur
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations end report if it does not and to highlight any nen-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primerily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel ond review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations,

As @ part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the cudit and develop an effective cudit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers oll risks
and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017,
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We
have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related
parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

The following instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations was observed which are
not appropriately stated in the Statement of Compliance:

a) There is only one person assigned to the role of head of internal cudit function without any other
member and accordingly there is no internal audit department in existence in the company. Hence,
the role and functions of internal audit as defined in Regulation 31(4) of the Code of Corporate
Governance Regulations, 2019 are complied with in letters and not in spirit.

b) Mo arrangements were in place in the company to ensure that the continued findings as highlighted
by the head of internal audit to the audit committee in its meetings have been duly resclved and
complied with to have effective internal control system and to have its due utility.

Based on our review, except for the above instances of non-compliance, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's
compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the yecr ended
June 30, 2025,

Further, we highlight below instance(s) of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Regulations as
reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Other Offices at:  Karachi - Faisalabad - Islamabad
Web site: www.krestonhb.com
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Paragraph in Statement of Compliance:
—— Zhigrl
. ParographNo.19 | Regulation No. 19:

The directors are required to acquire the director training, which shall
be arranged to get their director training program certification (DTC)
within a period of one year, as required under the relevant regulations.

' Regulation No. 29 (1):

| The responsibilities as prescribed for the Nomination Committee are .
being taken care of at Board level as and when needed, so a separate
committee is not considered to be necessary at present.

Regulation No. 30 (1):

The Board has tasked the Audit Committee to eversee Risk Management
related maotters of the Company, therefore o separate committee has
| not been constituted.

Section 131 of the Companies Acth:
| The Company was incorporated in 2022 as a wholly owned subsidiary
of LSEFSL. Its initial directors were appointed by LSEFSL. Subsequently,
the Company entered into a Scheme of Arrangement and merger/de-
| merger with LSEFSL and other entities. This scheme was implemented in
| 2023 after being sanctioned by the Honorable Lahore High Court, |
Lahore. The Company's first Annual General Meeting was held in 2023.
Following the completion of term of the Board, an election for o new
Board was conducted in August 2025.

Regulation No. 6 (3):

As explained above, the Company was incorporated in 2022 as o
public-unlisted company, being a whelly owned subsidiary of LSEFSL.
The initially oppoeinted directors continued as the directors of the
Company till election for a new Board in August-20235. Accordingly, the
newly elected directors have submitted their consents to act as director
and declaration of independence.

\<~’J-(‘uu AN As %\'\'\"\%{ & @))

Lahore: November 1, 2025 KRESTOMN HYDER BHIMJI & CO,
UDIN: CR202510141GpnHWLIO4 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Other Offices at:  Karachi - Falsalabad - Islamabad
Web site: www krestonhb.com

A member of Kreston Global



Amin Building,

65 - The Mall, Lahore.

Phone: 042-37352661-37321043
Email: krestonhb@grmail com

'KRESTON

HYDER BHIMJI & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LSE VENTURES LIMITED
Repeort on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the onnexed financial statements of Messrs. LSE Ventures Limited (the “Company”), which
comprises statement of financial peosition as at June 30, 2025, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information,
and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and repoerting
Standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017),
in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at June
30, 2025 and of the profit, the other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethies Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adepted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinien.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Following are the Key Audit Matters:

5r. No. Key Audit Matters | How the Matter was addressed in audit

1. Investments

QOur audit procedures to verify the valuation of the
investments, among others include the following:

[refer notes 5 and & to the annexed financial
statements)

The carrying amount of investments held by the | «  Assessed the design and tested the operating

Company omounted to Rs. 2,957.688 which
constitutes 90.29% of the total assets as at June
30, 2025.

The significant portion of investments comprise
of investment in associates, listed ond unlisted
equity securities and debt securities.

Investments are carried under equity method,
amortized cost, or fair value in accordance with
the Company's accounting policy relating to
their recognition end measurement. Provision
against investments is based on Impairment
policy of the Company which includes both
subjective and objective factors.

effectiveness of key controls in place relating to
valuation of investments;

Checked on o test basis the valuation of
investments, recognition of proportienate share of |
post-acquisition post tax profits and other
comprehensive income of investees as recorded in
the general ledger to supporting documents,
externally quoted market prices, break-up values,
etc.;

Checking the existence of shares from the Central
Depositary Company's report or share certificates;

Obtained independent confirmations for verifying
the existence of investments portfolioc as at June

Other Offices at:
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We identified assessing carrying value of the 30, 2025 and reconciled it with the books and
investment as o key audit matter because of its records of the Company., Where such
significance to the financial statements and confirmations were not avaoilable, alternate
because assessing the fair value and the key procedures performed;

impairment assumptions invelves a significant

degree of management judgement * Evoluated the Compaony's assessment for

impairment, if any including those securities that
are not traded actively in market in occordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pokistan and performed an
independent assessment of the assumptions and
conclusions; and

* Considered the Company's disclosures of
investments in accordance with the requirements of
the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual repert, but does not include the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance cenclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infermation and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise cppears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
occounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going cencern, disclosing, as cpplicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease cperations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. The Board of directors is responsible for everseeing the company's financial reporting

process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as @ whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an ouditer's report that includes our opinion,
Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an oudit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect @ material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an oudit in accordance with |SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as froud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the ocudit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company's internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

=  (Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the geing concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether @ material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continve as a geing concern. If we conclude that @ material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our epinien. Our conclusions are based on
the oudit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a geing cencern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant avdit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key oudit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should net be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows (together with the notes thereen have been
drawn up in confermity with the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

c) investments mode, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company's business; and
d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1980), was deducted by

the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other Matter

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 were audited by another auditer whe expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements on November 04, 2024,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Yousaf .
\ Craaton W Qo Eb}“"‘Q‘ g\

LAHORE: NOVEMBER 01, 2025 KRESTON HYDER BHIMJI& CO.

UDIN: AR202510141)d043%AUe CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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LSE VENTURES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousands
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in associates 5 2,768,854 1,687,629
Financial assets 6 788,834 719,496
Prepayments 7 5,202 5,852
Long term deposits 8 400 100
2,963,290 2613,077
CURRENT ASSETS
Income tax refunds due from Government g 70,803 32,329
Receivables, advances and prepayments 10 165,310 156,236
Cash and bank balances " 29,261 3,016
265,374 151,581
Assets classified as held for sale 12 47,126 52,362
_ 3215790 2857000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES s S S
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized Share Capital
300,000,000 (2024: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 3,000,000 2,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 13 1,795,979 1,795,979
Capital reserves:
- Demerger reserve 26,533 26,533
- Fair value reserve 337,424 152,791
363,957 179,324
Revenue reserves:
- Unappropriated profit 495,800 466,846
2,655,736 2,442 149
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liability 14 446,311 30261
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 15 20,505 41,480
Un-paid dividend 30,709 37444
Un-claimed dividend 41,207 15,568
Provision for taxation g 81,322 17,768
173,743 112,260
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 16
:—;ﬂ& %
The annexe: rom 1 to 34 form an integral part of nancial statements. § P
/ 3
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LSE VENTURES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Revenue
OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative and general expenses
Other operaling expenses

OTHER INCOME

POST TAX SHARE OF PROFIT FROM ASSOCIATES
OPERATING PROFIT

FINANCE COST
PROFIT BEFORE LEVIES AND INCOME TAX

LEVIES
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

INCOME TAX
PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX FOR THE YEAR

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statemen
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Chief Financiat Officer

2025 2024
Rupees in thousands
466,265 285,582
(131,211) (102,823)
(8,700) (23,869)
326,354 158,880
14,885 8,961
37,291 129,131
378,530 256,982
(2,666) (6,809)
375,864 290,173
(82,591) (16,191)
293,273 273,982
(84,721) (86,875)
208,552 187,107
1.16 1.04
Director



LSE VENTURES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Rupees in thousands

PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX FOR THE YEAR 208,552 187,107

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss . =

Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Share of other comprehensive income of associates 6,521 9,524
Gain on equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income 252,239 198,462
Less: Deferred tax (74,127) (60,316)
184,633 147,670
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 393,185 334,777

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statementn.& .
O
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Balance as at June 30, 2023

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners of the Company
Cash dividends @ Rs. 0.50 per share for the year ended
June 30, 2023

Balance as at June 30, 2024
Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with owners of the Company

Cash dividends @ Rs. 1.00 per share for the year ended
June 30, 2024

Balance as at June 30, 2025

LSE VENTURES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o
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Chief ~

Capital Reserves Revenue Reserve
Share Capital | FairValue | Demerger Total Unappropriated Total Equity
Reserve Reserve Profit
movivireeerres FATOEKE TN TTIOMBAIE. -\ s veeesemsesoerenssremermsamassvessassamess
1,795,879 11,883 26,533 38,416 362,776 219711
. - - 187,107 187,107
140,908 - 140,908 6,762 147 670
140,908 140,908 193,869 334777
- (89,799) (89,799)
1,795,979 152,791 26,533 179,324 466,846 2,442 149
208,552 208,552
184,633 184,633 - 184,633
. 184,633 184,633 208,552 393,185
- - - (179,598) (179,598)
1,795,979 ok . L S - 363,857 455,800 2,655,736
=
Chief Financi Director




LSE VENTURES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Finance cost paid

Income tax paid

Changes in long term deposits

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment made in MTS / (recovered) - net
Investment in listed and unlisted securities
Investments recovered during the year
Investments in associates made during the year
Sale proceed from disposal of investment
Investments made during the year

Interest bearing loan received back / (to associate)
Dividend received

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans (repaid) / obtained during the year
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE YEAR

2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousands
24 (113,904) (118,906)
(4,266) (5,209)
(72,658) (41,436)
(300) -
(191,128) (165,551)
. 316,526
(39,494) (17,200)
- 3,500
(1,360) .
21,124 -
- (376,000)
(6,021) 14,420
423,819 209,228
398,068 150,474
(20,000) 20,000
(160,695) (85,810)
(180,695) (65,810)
26,245 (80,887)
3,016 83,903
1" 29,261 3,016

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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LSE VENTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

LSEVL was registered on July 18, 2022, under the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) as a public unlisted
company limited. Under a Scheme of Arrangement having been sanctioned by the Honorable Lahore High Court
(LHC) on April 26, 2023, the above investment portfolio was transferred to LSEVL. Under the same scheme, the
Company also acquired the status of a listed company (through reverse merger with a shell listed company - Data
Textiles). As a consequence, the shares of the Company started trading on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) in

June 2023, under the symbol of "LSEVL".

The Company's primary business is to invest in such positive cash flow generating companies, which could later be
made to debut on PSX as the listed companies. Hence, the vision behind the Company's formation is to expand the
availability of listed enterprises in Pakistan and play an effective part in the expansion of the capital market of the

country.

LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL / the Company) was created for the purpose of transferring the portfolio of legacy
investments in capital market infrastructure companies having been made by its predecessor company - the
erstwhile Lahore Stock Exchange (LSE).

The head office / registered office of the company is located at the Exchange Hub, LSE Plaza, 19, Khayaban-e-
Aiwan-e-lgbal, Lahore.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, have been followed.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
a) Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow
statement.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention without any
adjustments for the effect of inflation or current values, except for the following material items in the
statement of financial position:
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b)

c)

d)

e Certain investment in associates are stated under equity method and under fair value through other
comprehensive income in accordance with IAS 28 and IFRS 9 respectively.

« Certain financial instruments which are carried at their fair value in accordance with IFRS 9.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (Rs.) which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded to nearest
rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

Critical accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. In addition, it requires
management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and
relate primarily to:

Desmptlon : Note {
e Current income tax expense provision for current tax and recognltlcm of deferred tax
asset (for carried forward tax losses) 4.1
e Useful lives, residual values and amortization methud of intangible assets 4.2
o Estimation of provisions 49
. Es_llmahan of contingent liabilities 4.10
'« Expected credit losses of certain financial assets under IFRS 9 4.11
e Impairment loss of non-financial assets ‘ 411
e Classifications |

The revisions to accounting estimates (if any) are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to publish approved accounting standards

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Company’s
financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

» New accounting standards interpretations and amendments to accounting standards that are
effective and relevant

There were certain amendments that became applicable for the Company during the year but are not

considered to be relevant or did not have any significant effect on the Company's operations and have,
therefore, not been disclosed in these financial statements.
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« New accounting standards and amendments to standards not yet effective

There are certain standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and interpretations
that are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2025 but are
considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's operations and are,
therefore, not detailed in these financial statements, except for the following:

1AS 21

IFRS 7 and 9

IFRS7and 9

IFRS-10/
|AS-28

‘Annual
Improvements
to IFRS
Accounting
Standards —
Volume 11'

IFRS 17
IFRS §1
IFRS 82

Amendments to IAS 21 'The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’
address situations where a currency may lack exchangeability, often due to
government-imposed controls. In such cases, companies must estimate a spot
exchange rate reflecting orderly transactions at the measurement date.

‘Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
(Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7)' to address matters identified during the
post-implementation review of the classification and measurement requirements of
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’.

The amendments in Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity
{Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7) are:

« the own-use requirements in IFRS 9 are amended to include the factors an
entity is required to consider when applying IFRS 9:2.4 to contracls o buy
and take delivery of renewable eleclricity for which the source of production
of the electricity is nature-dependent; and

» the hedge accounting requirements in IFRS 8 are amended to permit an
entity using a contract for nature-dependent renewable electricity with
specified characteristics as a hedging instrument:

» todesignate a variable volume of forecast electricity transactions as the
hedged item if specified criteria are met; and

« tomeasure the hedged item using the same volume assumptions as those
used for the hedging instrument.

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 - Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendment regarding sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and ils associate or Joint Venture).

It contains amendments to five standards (IFRS 1, 7, 9, 10 and IAS 7) as result of
the IASB's annual improvements project.

Insurance Contracts (New standard)

'General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial
Information’.
'Climate-related Disclosures’.

Effective for the

period beginning
on or after

January 01, 2025

January 1, 2026

January 1, 2026

Deferred
indefinitely

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026
July 01, 2025
July 01, 2025

o




New Standards issued by IASB but have not yet been notified/adopted by SECP
Effective for the
period beginning on
or after as per IASB

IFRS 18 IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements and IFRS 19 January 01, 2027
Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability - Disclosures has been issued by IASB January 01, 2027

IFRS -1 First Time Adoption of IFRS 1 (restructured version) July 01, 2009

These standards will become part of the Company’s financial reporting framework upon adoption by the
SECP.

The Company’s management at present is in the process of assessing the full impacts of these new
standards and the new amendments and is expecting to complete the assessment in due course.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The material accounting policies are as
follows:

4.1 Income tax

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity (if any), and in which case the tax amounts are recognized directly in in other

comprehensive income or equity.
Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

Levy

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of turnover tax and final tax is not based
on taxable income. Therefore, as per IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and
Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21/ IAS 37 and accordingly have been
classified as levy in these financial statements, except for taxes on dividends on the Company's
investments in subsidiaries and associates which are specifically within the scope of IAS 12 and hence
these continue to be categorized as current income tax.

When the minimum tax is higher than tax calculated on taxable profits, excess amount is recognized as
levy under IFRIC 21 / IAS 37. Further the company also charges tax expense under levy when tax is
calculated under final tax regime.
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Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and
unused tax losses and credits.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or expense in
profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income (such
as the revaluation of property, plant and equipment) or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Judgment and estimates

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding provision for
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain as
these matters are being contested at various legal forums. The Company recognizes liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Further, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to
reflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. If required, carrying amount of deferred tax asset is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits to allow the benefit of part or
all of that recognised deferred tax asset to be utilised. Any such reduction shall be reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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4.2
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Off-setting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
gither to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Intangibles
Measurement

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Research and development expenditure is charged to ‘administrative and general expenses' in the
statement of profit or loss, as and when incurred.

Judgment and estimates

The useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed on a regular basis. The effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. All intangible assets are estimated to have
definite useful lives.

Investments

Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the reporting date or to be sold to raise
operating capital are included in curent assets, all other investments are classified as non-current.
Management determines the classification of its investments at the time of purchase depending on the
purpose for which the investments are required and re-evaluates this classification on regular basis.

Investment in associates under equity method

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Company holds between 20% and 50% of voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost.
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Company’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Company's share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income.

Dividends received or receivable from associates are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of
investment. When the Company’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, the Company does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee company. Unrealized gains on trensactions between the
Company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s interest in the entity. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
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4.4

4.5

4.6

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries / associates where the Company has control / significant influence are
measured at cost less impairment, if any, in the Company's separate financial statements. At subsequent
reporting date, the recoverable amounts of investments are estimated to determine the extent of
impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment
losses are recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss. Investments in subsidiaries and
associates that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each
reporting date. Where impairment losses are subsequently reversed, the carrying amounts of the
investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of
investments. Impairment losses recognized in the statement of profit or loss on investments in subsidiaries
and associates are reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

The Company is required to issue consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial
statements, in accordance with the requirements of IAS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’.

Trade debts, deposits and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and measured
at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Actual credit loss
experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current,
saving'and deposit accounts and other short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash net of temporary bank or books overdrafts / overdrawn.

Borrowings / loans and borrowing costs
Interest bearing borrowings / Loans

Interest bearing borrowings / loans are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest rate method. Finance costs are accounted for on accrual basis and are reported under
accrued mark up to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

Interest free loans payable on discretion of the company
Interest free loans given by directors and sponsors of the company and repayable at the discretion of the

Company are initially measured and subsequently recognized in line with Technical Release - 32 (TR 32 -
Accounting Directors' Loan) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), these

loans are shown as part of equity.
% !5
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4.8
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Overdrafts

Overdrafts, if any, are repayable in full on demand and are measured at amortized cost.

Interest / borrowing costs

Interest expense / borrowing costs are accounted for on the basis of the effective interest method and are
included in finance costs which are charged to income in the period in which these are incurred , except
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use.

Borrowings are reported under accrued finance costs to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid and are
classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Employees benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for

the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plan

The LSE Group maintains the employees provident fund trust at group level for all its permanent
employees being employed by the group companies.

Provisions
Recognition and measurement

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised when the company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settiement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required
o settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific fo the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Judgement and estimates

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations,
public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such
changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognised provision is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Contingencies and commitments

A contingent liability is disclosed when the company has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the company; or the company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent liability is also disclosed when there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A Contingent asset is disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not
recognized in the financial statements since this may result in recognition of income that may never be
realized.

Judgement and estimates

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on the
judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or
provision is made. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying
amounts of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date.

Capital commitments, unless those are actual liabilities, are not incorporated in the books of accounts.
Impairment

Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:

» financial assets measured at amortized cost;

e debt investments measured at FVOCI; and Ei:

e contract assets. s ®
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

« debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

 other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.

This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovery of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of wrile off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Judgement and estimates

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets original effective interest rate.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a matrix that is based on
the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.
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The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are
deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Impairment on financial assets other than trade debts has been measured on 12 - months expected loss
basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposure.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and
groups. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed
at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset's carrying amount after the reversal does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if
no impairment loss had been recognized.

Judgement and estimates

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its non-financial assets and cash
generating units for possible impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any

such indication.

Financial Instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
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Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

« it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, long term
loans, trade debts, term deposits and other receivable.

Debt Instrument — FVOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

e itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to statement of profit or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the

reporting date. 8
w
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Equity Instrument - FVOCI

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in statement of
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements fo be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Dividend income is presented separately
from net gain and losses.

Financial assets comprise of receivables, investments in equity and debt securities, cash and bank
balances, etc.

All “regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settiement date, i.e. the
date on which the asset is delivered to or by the company. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are those, the contract for which requires delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by the regulation or convention in the market.

Financial assets - Business model assessment

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse features).
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities comprise contractual trade and other payables, unclaimed / unpaid dividend, etc.
Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets.
In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Off - setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention and
ability to settie on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. g .
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4.15

4.16
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Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency using the exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the date of the
transaction.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are franslated into Pakistan Rupees using the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translations at the yearend exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in statement of profit or loss. All non-monetary assets
and liabilities are translated in Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction or at the date when the fair value was determined.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly aftributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Dividend and other distribution

Dividend and other distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the company’s shareholders.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is calculated
by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Related party transactions

All transactions arising in the normal course of business and are conducted at arm's length at normal
commercial rate on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes as
admissible, except in rarely extreme circumstances where, subject to approval of the Board of Directors, it
is in the interest of the Company to do so. Parties are said to be related if they are able to influence the
operating and financial decisions of the Company and vice versa.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) who makes strategic decisions. The CEQ has determined that the Company operates as a single

reporting segment.
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4.20

4.21

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than
changes resulting from transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total
comprehensive income comprises all components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Other

comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments that
are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by approved accounting standards.

Statement of cashflows

The Company classify cash flows from interest paid as operating activities, cash flows from interest
received and dividends received as investing activities, and cash flows from dividends paid as financing

activities; and
Revenue recognition
Return on deposits

Return on deposits is accounted for on a time proportionate basis using the applicable rate of return /
interest.

Net unrealized gain / (losses)

Net unrealized gain / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as 'fair value through profit or
loss' are included in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss as other income when:

« the Company's right to receive payment have been established;

« is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the company; and

o the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Dividend income in case of cumulative preference shares is recognized in profit or loss on accrual basis.

Other income

Other income, if any, is recognized on accrual basis. E
W
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousands
Under Equity Method
LSE Capital Limited (LSECL) 5.1 387,918 360,271
LSE Financial Services Limited (LSEFSL) 5.2 104,505 103,836
Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL) 5.2 61,591 60,921
554,014 525,028
Under Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 54 1,614,840 1,362,601
2,168,854 1,887,629

5.1

5.2

5.2

5.3

LSE Capital Limited

LSE Capital Limited ("LSECL") (formerly Bank Islami Modaraba Investments Limited) was incorporated in Pakistan on January 22,
1986, as an unlisted public limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017).
Subsequently, it was registered as a Modaraba Company with the Registrar of Modaraba Companies and Modarabas, under the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980. The registered office of the Company is situated at
LSE Plaza, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-lgbal Road Lahare.

LSE Financial Services Limited

LSE Financial Services Limited (the "Company’) was originally incorporated with the name of Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee)
Limited under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) on October 05, 1970 as a Company limited by
guarantee. The Company was re-registered as a public unlisted Company limited by shares on August 27, 2012. Consequent to the
integration of all stock exchanges of the country on Jan 11, 2016, the Company obtained an NBFC license to start functioning as an
investment finance services company under the name LSE Financial Services Limited. The Company underwent a series of
restructuring during 2023 and 2024. On May 31, 2024, the shares of the Company started trading on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
("PSX") consequent to the transfer of the listing status from Modaraba Al-Mali (Modaraba) under the scheme of arrangement with its
management company - LSE Capital Limited.

Digital Custodian Company Limited

Digital Custodian Company Limited ("DCCL") was incorporated on February 12, 1992 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984,
(now the Companies Act, 2017) as a private limited company. The status of the company was converted from private limited company
to unlisted public limited company on June 19, 2009. The registered office of the company is located at Office # 08, 5th floor, LSE
Plaza, Aiwan-e-lgbal Road, Lahore, Punjab.

Reconciliation of changes in camying value of investments in associates:

2025
LSECL | LSEFSL || DCCL | Total
mmmmmm === Rupees in thousands ----------------

Balance as at June 30, 2024 360,271 103,836 60,921 525,028
Investment made during the year 1,360 - . 1,360
Share of profit / (loss) during the year 29,332 4,857 395 34,584
Share of comprehensive income 5434 812 275 6,521
Bargain purchase gain 2,706 . - 2,706
Dividend received during the year (11,185) (5,000) 5 (16,185)
Balance as at June 30, 2025 387,918 104,505 61,591 554,014
No. of shares held 22,615,904 10,000.000 9,221,973




5.3.1

54

Balance reclassified from investment
in subsidiaries / financial asset
Gain on initial recognition of investment
Carrying value of investment on initial recognition

Share of profit / (loss) during the year
Share of comprehensive income / (loss)
Share in changes in equity of associate
Balance as at June 30, 2024

Mo. of shares held

2024
LSECL [ LSEFSL |1 DCCL Total
. Rupees in thousands
269,529 100,000 54,167 423,6%
70,408 8,994 - 79,402
339,937 108,994 54,167 503,098
10,810 (5,158) 6,754 12,406
9,364 - - 9,364
160 - - 160
360,271 103,836 60,921 525028
22,370,904 10,000,000 5221973

The following table summarizes the financial information of associates i.e. LSE Financial Services Limited ("LSE-FSL") and Digital
Custodian Company Limited ("DCCL") as included in their respective audited financial statements and LSE Capital Limited ("LSE-CL")
as unaudited. The table also reconciles the summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the Company's interest in

associates.

Revenue

Profit after income tax

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Current assets

Mon-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Met assets of the associates

Effect of adjustment of inter company elimination
Adjusted net assets of the associates

Proportion of the Cempany's ownership interest
Goodwill on initial recognition

Carrying value of investments

Under Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

Reconciliation of changes in carrying value / fair value

Balance as at June 30, 2024
Fair value gain - OCI

Balance as at June 30, 2025
Mo. of shares held

Shareholding in %age

[ LSECL | LSEFSL pccL |
------- upees in thousands -----—---
145428 30,790 127,342
236,308 17,328 3,956
43,751 2,897 2,757
280,059 20,225 6,713
619,900 96,352 39,132
2,906,399 392,830 631,662
(198,658) (10,988) (47,982)
(163,198) (7,391) 15,974
3,164 443 470,804 !
(57,222) (97,971) (14,372)
3,107,221 372,833 502,466
12.48% 28.03% 9.99%
- - 2,398
387,918 104,505 61,591
2025
NCCPL | cDC 1 Total
ceessrnannennenenens RUPEES iN thousands--
618,158 744,443 1,362,601
151,923 100,316 252,239
770,081 844,759 1,614,840
23,730,461 35,000,000
23.53% _10.00%

O
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2024
NCCPL || cDC | Total
—eeeeee——Rupees in thousands-——-————

Acquired under merger scheme 504,956 659,183 1,164,139
Fair value gain - OC 113,202 85,260 198,462
Balance as at June 30, 2024 618,158 T44 443 1,362,601
No. of shares held 23,730,461 35,000,000

Shareholding in %age 23.53% 10.00%

5.4.1 The Company acquired the investments in Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) and National Clearing Company of

Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) as result of the rearrangement scheme with LSE Financial Services Limited which was approved by the
Honorable Lahore High Court on April 26, 2023. The Company had recognized these as investment in associate due to common
directorship.

2025 2024
FINANCIAL ASSETS Note Rupees in thousands
At amortized cost
Pakistan Gasport Consortium Limited (PGPC) - Preference shares 6.1 656,000 656.000
At Fair value through profit or loss
Unlisted
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) - an associated company 6.2 72,201 43,329
Reckitt Benckiser Pakistan Limited 6.3 1,837 1,837
74.038 45,166
International Leaming Centre (Private) Limited (Beriitz) 6.4 16,794 9,000
Investment in SSR Pictures & 5Abbi Films 6.5 14,295 14,294
31,089 23,294
Allowance for expected credit loss 6.6 (31,089) (22,390)
¥ 904
Listed securities 6.7 58,796 17,426
132,834 63,496
788,834 719,496
6.1 This represents Company's holding of 65.6 million (2024: 65.6 million) preference shares in Pakistan GasPort Consortium Limited

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

(PGPC) which are non-voting, privately placed, unlisted, callable, puttable, cumulative and floating rate preference shares with a par
value of Rs. 10 each. These preference shares offer dividends at six months KIBOR plus 5.5% per annum.

The Company holds 6,477,271 (2024: 2,272,727) equity shares of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) which represents
7.25% (2024: 7.25%) ownership in investee. The fair value of this investment is based on the breakup / net asset value of shares as per
the audited accounts provided by the management. The fair value of investment in PMEX has been determined based on the net asset
value due to limited financial information available.

The Company holds 751 (2024: 751) equity shares in Reckitt Benckiser Pakistan Limited. The fair value of this investment is based on
the breakup value of shares as per the unaudited accounts provided by the management. The fair value of investment in this company
has been determined based on the net asset value due to limited financial information available.

The Company obtained 10,636 (2024: 5,700) shares of Intemational Leaming Centre (Private) Limited which represents 9.33% (2024.
5.00%) ownership. This investment has been fully impaired as of reporting date.

This represented the Company's share of 33.33% (2024: 33.33%) of partnership in AOP with Mr. Ifthikhar Thakur and Mr. Muhammad
Safdar Malik under the name of SSR Pictures & 5Abbi Films which was established for the purpose of production of movies in Pakistan.
Owing to continuous business losses, this investment has been impaired.



2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousands
6.6 Movement of allowance for expected credit loss
Balance as at July 01, 22,390 -
Allowance for impairment for the year:
- International Leamning Centre (Private) Limited (Berlitz) 6.4 8,699 B,095
- Investment in SSR Pictures & 5Abbi Films 6.5 - 14,205
8.699 22,390
Balance as at June 30, 31,089 22,390
6.7 Breakup of listed securities:
As of June 30, 2025
Description Symbol | No.of shares |Cost per share Cost Market price per Fair Value
(Rs.) Rs. (000) share (Rs.) Rs. (000)
Ghani Chemworld Limited GOwL 4,500,000 10.10 45,450 972 43,740
MACPAC Films Limited pn 100,000 2691 2,691 49.38 4,938
Pakistan General Insurance Co. Lid. i 840,645 11.10 9,331 10.50 8,827
Tata Textile Mills Limited PR 399 128.33 51 129.71 52
gﬂﬂ _&
As of June 30, 2024
Scrip Symbol | No.ofshares | Cost per share Cost Market price per Fair Value
(Rs.) Rs. (000) share (Rs.) Rs. (000)
First Dawood Properties Limited FOP 5,839,000 211 12,336 2.29 13,31
The Bank of Punjab BOP 788,000 6.27 4 944 4.87 3,838
Mughal Energy Limited GEMMEL 9,833 17.02 167 2209 217
17,447 17,426
2025 2024
PREPAYMENTS Note Rupees in thousands
Club memberships 5,202 5,852
LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Securty deposit 81 400 100

8.1 This amount has been deposited with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited for investor account services and PSO for fuel

canrds of CEQ.
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2025 2024

Note Rupees in thousands
ADVANCE INCOME TAX
Advance income lax 9.1 70,803 32.329
9.1 Advance Income tax
Opening balance 32,329 -
Provision adjustment (17,768) .
Prior year adjustment (16,417)
Rectfication of unbooked lax in prier year 2.233 :
Income tax deducted at source 70,425 32,39
10,803 32329
9.2 Provision for Income Tax
Opening provision for income lax 17,768
Adjusted in income tax return (17,768) v
Provision for income lax and levies for the year 81,322 17,768
Closing provision for income lax B1,322 17 768
RECIEVABLES, ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS
Considered good - Unsecured
Accrued dividend income 101 60,064 66,497
Receivable from related parly 10.2 94,174 88,153
Advances to employees 1,482 183
Advances to broker 1,816 1,403
Other receivable 7,774 -
165,310 156,236
101 This reprosents dividend accrued against preference shares of Pakistan GasPort Consortium Limiled (PGPC) at the rate of 6M Kibar
plus 5.5% per annum.
10.2  Receivable from related party
Maximum balance Gross Amount Due
outstanding
2025 2024 2025 2024
Rupees in thousands Rupees in thousands
LSE Capilal Limited 94,174 88,153 94,174 85,153

10.2.1  This represents advance given to LSE Capital Limited (a related parly) that carried markup at 6M KIBOR + 1.00%.

10.2.2 Thisincludes markup of Rs. 0.206 million payable lo LSE Financial Services Limited (a related party) on advances received Irom the
Company during the year carrying markup @ 6M KIBOR + 1.00%.

2025 2024
CASH AND BANK BALANCES s R e iaTaare
Cash at bank
- Current account B.350 -
- Savinas accounts 11 20,911 306
29,261 3,016

1.1 These carry mark-up @ 9.50% to 20.50% (2024: 20.5% per annum) per annum. aocroximately,
112  The above figures of bank balances reconcile to the amount of cash and cash equivalents shown in the statement of cash Nows.
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2025 2024

Note Rupees in thousands
12 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Opening balance 52,363 -
Transferred from investment in associates 12.1 - 52,363
Disposal during the year (5,237)
Closing balance 47,126 52,363
No. of shares held 24,147,378 26,830,420
Shareholding in %age 32.40% 36.00%

12.1 During the last year, the Board of Directors has resolved to dispose off investment in Pakistan Credit Rating Agency

Limited (PACRA) - an associated company and this investment was expected to be sold within next 12 months, therefore,
classified as held for sale as per IFRS 5. However, during the year 2,683,042 shares were disposed off in line with
agreement entered into with the buyer group and thereafter on account of violation of the agreement by the buyer group,
the Company terminated the agreement. However, management believes that sale of this investment is highly probable in
the next twelve months.

122 The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan on
August 18, 1994 and converted into a public limited company on April 30, 2004 and converted into listed company on
June 30, 2025. PACRA is engaged in the business is to carrying out risk evaluation of companies and specific
instruments. Its registered office of the company is situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town,

Lahore.

13 ISSUED. SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2025 2024 2025 2024
Number of shares Note Rupees in thousands
179,597,880 179,597 880 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued other than in cash 1,795,979 1,785,979

131 As the result of demerger scheme, 100% shares of LSEFSL have been transferred to the Company and the previous share capital of
the Company has been cancelled.

13.2  Shares held by related parties are as follows:

2025 2024 2025 2024
Percentage Mumber of Shares
LSE Capital Limited 26.82% 26.82% 48,171,586 48,171,586
Directors 13.08% 13.08% 23,490,889 23,490,889

71,662,475 71,662,475

133 The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in the form of bonus and right shares
as and when declared by the Company. All shares carry one vote per share without restriction. E’d‘
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14 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY Note

Deferred tax liability 14.1

Breakup of Deferred tax Liability
Taxable Temporary Differences

Investment in associates

Financial assets - listed / unlisted securities
Assets classified as held for sale

Accrued income from dividend

Deductible Temporary Differences

Financial assets - other
Provision for PWWF

141 Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities / (assets) - Net

2025 2024

Rupees in thousands
446,311 302611
436,192 283,464

15,672 7.583
- 13,619
9,010 9,975
(9,0186) (6,493)

[5,54;[ !5.54?1

Opening balance 302,611 156,997
Deferred tax effect charged to profit or loss 69,573 85,298
Deferred tax effect charged to other comprehensive income 74,127 60,316
Closing balance 446,311 302,611
142 Analvsis of deferred tax
Statement of Financial Position | Statement of Profit or Loss
05 | 2024 025 | 202
Rupees in thousands

Investment in associates 436,192 283464 78,601 (147,572)
Financial assets - listed / unlisted securities 15,672 7,593 8,019 221,316
Assets classified as held for sale . 13,619 (13,619) 13,618
Accrued income from dividend 9,010 9,975 (985) 9,975
Financial assets - other (9,016) (6,493) (2,523) (6:493)
Provision for PWWF (5,547) (5,547) (5,547)

446,311 302,611 69573 85208

143 Deferred tax assets / liabilities on temporary differences are measured at effective rate of 28% & 15% (2024: 20% & 15%).

15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note
Punjab Workers' Welfare Fund payable 15.1
Accrued liabilities

Accrued markup

Payable 1o provident fund trust - related party

15.1 Puniab Workers' Welfare Fund pavable
Opening balance
Add; Provision during the year
Closing balance

2025 2024
Rupees in thousands
18,129 19,128
1,376 752
1,600
20,000

20505 41480

19,128 17,649
- 1,479
19,128 18,128

&



16 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

16.1 Contingencies
The Company has not recognized provision for Punjab Workers' Welfare Fund (PWWF) amounting to Rs. 11.842 million (2024: Rs.
4.324 million) on the pretext that it does not fall under the definition of industrial establishment as defined in clause (d) of section 2 of
the Punjab Workers' Welfare Fund Act, 2019 nor does it employ any worker as defined in clause () of section 2 of the Act and section
2 of the Punjab Industrial Relation Act, 2010.

16.2 There are no material commitments outstanding as at the reporting date (2024: Nil).

17 REVENUE 2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousands
Income from financial assets
Revenue from Margin Trading System of NCCPL via LSE FSL . 67 417
Dividend income 401,202 192,275
Realized gain on sales of shares 29,097 478
Unrealized fair value gain on investments 29,061 22,055
Profit on savings bank accounts 6,905 3357
466,265 285,582
18 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 18.1&18.2 44,952 46,375
Shared services 18.3 31,250 -
Information technology related expenses 2,401 3416
Insurance 277 1.399
Travelling and conveyance 5,762 4,963
Printing and stationery 172 994
Utilities 641 2,733
Repairs and maintenance 2,581 8.961
Security expenses 1,070 4,589
Communication and public relations 6,045 5.682
Legal and professional charges 16,053 15.667
Fees and subscriptions 11,053 763
Rent, rates and taxes 1,744 130
Auditors' remuneration 18.4 1,331 1.670
Board meetings fee 3,000 3.900
Donation 2,500 383
Miscellaneous 379 1,198
131,211 102,823

18.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs. 2.240 million (2024: Rs. 2.251 million) in respect of contribution to provident fund trust.
18.2 This includes portion of salary expense amounting to Rs. 26.815 million shared with LSE Capital Limited.

18.3 This represents cost of services (i.e. equity management, payroll processing, accounting and treasury services, HR management,
income tax and sales tax management, etc.) payable to LSE Capital Limited- related party pursuant to agreement dated November
22, 2024 entered into between group companies.

2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousands
18.4 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit fee 630 715
Half yearly review 315 368
Fee for review report on statement of compliance 75 -
Government levies =) -
Qut of pocket expenses 102 53
Certifications for requlatory purposes 150 534

1,331 1,670
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Expected credit loss on financial assets
Puniab Workers' Welfare Fund

OTHER INCOME
Markup on loan to associated company

FINANCE COST

Markup expense
Bank charges

LEVIES

Current
Finaf tax
Minimum tax

Prior year

22.1 This represents minimum tax / final tax paid under various sections of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levy in terms of requirements of

IFRIC 21/IAS 37,

22.2 INCOME TAX

Currenl
Deferred tax

22.3 Reconciliation of tax charae for the vear
Profit before levies and income tax

Tax @ 29% on profit before taxation

Minimum tax

Levies

Capital gain tax
Super tax

Tax on bonus shares

Tax effect of add backs / allowed deductions / deferred taxation

22.4 Reconciliation of Levy and Income Tax under |AS-12
Current tax liability as per applicable tax laws

Portion of current tax liability representing

- Income tax as per IAS -12
- Levv as per IFRIC 21/ 1AS 37

6.6

14.2

2025

2024

Rupees in thousands

8,700 22,390
- 1479
=—.ﬂ —A
14,885 8,961
2,646 6,801
20 8
_& A
65.902 16.191
2712 -
66,174 16.191
16,417 -
AL ——r—
15.148 1.577
69,573 85.298
-AL A
A &
109.000 B4.150
2712
(78,525) 3
(552) -
(2.314) -
4,205
52,635 2125
A& IAL
B1.322 17.768
(15.148) (1.577)
(16.191)

(66.174)

225 The current tax expense for the year is calculated using corporation tax rate of 29% (2024: 29%). Deferred tax assets and liabilities

on temporary differences are measured at effective rate of 29% & 15% (2024: 29% & 15%).

226 Income tax return has been filed to the income tax authorities upto and including tax year 2024 under the provisions of the Income

Tax Ordinance, 2001,
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EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Number of shares in thousands)

Eamings per share - basic (Rupees)

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

PROFIT BEFORE LEVIES AND INCOME TAX

Adjustments:

Share of profit of associates

Retumn on investments

Unrealized fair value gain on investment - net
Realized fair value gain on investment
Expected credit loss on financial assets
Amartization

Provision for Punjab Workers' Welfare Fund

Finance cost

Loss before working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

- Receivables, advances and prepayments
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:

- Trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

2025 2024

Note Rupees in thousands

208,552 187,107

179,598 179,598

1.16 1.04

375,864 290,173

5.3 (37,291) (129,131)
17 (401,202) (192,275)
17 (29,061) (22,055)

(29,097) -

19 8,700 22,380
650 650

1,479

21 2,666 6,809
(484,635) (312,134
(5,758) (67,762)
625 (29,184)

(113,904) (118,908)
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25 Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programmed focuses on having cost efficient funding as
well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders.

Risk management is carried by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management as well
as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

251

25.2

25.3

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes in
foreign currency, interest rate, commodity price and equity price that will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. As there are no foreign currency receivables / payables of the Company, it is not exposed
to currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company is not significantly exposed to floating interest rate risk as it does not have any significant
interest bearing liabilities. However, the Company has fixed and variable interest based investments. These investments are
classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity of interest rates and management's intention. Other
assets and liabilities of the Company do not expose the Company to interest rate risk substantially.

The maximum maturity profile of investment in Margin Trading System is upto sixty four days. Therefore, changes in interest
rates shall not affect the cash flows of the Company. The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial

instruments as at the reporting date is as follows:
2025 2024

Rupees in thousands

Floating rate instruments
Financial assets

Pakistan Gasport Consortium Limited (PGPC) - Preference shares 656,000 656,000
Receivable from related party 94,174 88,153
Bank balances 20,911 3,016

771,085 747,169

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As at reporting date, if interest rates get 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the
period would have been higher / lower by Rs. 7.711 million (2024: Rs. 7.472 million), mainly as a result of yield on floating
investment based financial assets.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the
market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk in respect of certain investments amounting to Rs. 1,747.674 million
(2024: Rs. 1,426.097 million).

A change of 1% in the value of investments at fair value through profit or loss would have increased / decreased profitability
of the Company by Rs. 17.477 million (2024: Rs. 14.261 million) on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
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25.4 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, and other financial instruments.

The management assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors, The utilization of credit limits is regularly menitored. For banks and financial institutions, only independently
rated parties with a strong credit rating are accepted.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such assets and
available external credit ratings, if any. As at the reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying
amount of the financial assets as detailed below:

2025 2024

Note Rupees in thousands
Financial assets 6 2,403,674 2,082,097
Income tax refunds due from Government 9 163,828 166,054
Cash and bank balances 11 29,261 3,016
2,596,763 2,241,167

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer such as
repayment behavior, credit loss history and available securities etc. The management also considers other relevant factors
that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the customer. In monitoring
customer credit risk, customers are individually assessed according to their trading history and repayment behavior with the
Company.

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment terms are offered.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are operated in
largely independent markets. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are only banks (with
reasonably high credit ratings).

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating
Short term Long term Agency 225 2004
Rupees in thousands
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 20,911 3,016
MCB Bank Al+ AAA PACRA 8,350 -

29,261 9,010
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25.5 Liouiditv risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Prudent liguidity
risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. Due to dynamic nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit lines available. The
Company's liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring critical
liquidity ratios and maintaining debt financing plans. The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows:

Description Carrying Amount Contractual cash Within 1 year 1-2 Years 2.5 Years
flows

Rupees in thousands

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30. 2025:

Trade and other payables 1,376 1,376 1,376 - -
Un-paid dividend 30,709 30,708 30,708 - -
Un-claimed dividend 41,207 41,207 41,207 . .

73,292 73,292 73,292 - .

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2024;

Trade and other payables 22,352 22,352 22,352 -
Un-paid dividend 37444 37 444 37,444 - -
Un-claimed dividend 15,568 15,568 15,568

75,364 75,364 75,364 - -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark up rates effective as at the
reporting date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements, where applicable.

25.6 Financial instruments bv cateaories
Financial assets as at June 30. 2025

Fair value At amortized cost At fair value Total
through profit or through other
loss comprehensive
income

Rupees in thousands

Financial assets 132834 656.000 1.614.840 2.403.674
Trade and other receivables - 163.828 - 163.828
Bank balances . 29,261 . 29,261

132,834 849089 1,614,840 2,996,763
Financial assets as at June 30. 2024

Fair vaiue through | At amortized cost | At fair value through Total
profit or loss other comprehensive
income

Rupees in thousands

Financial assets 63496 £56.000 1.362.601 2.082.097
Trade and other receivables - 156.054 - 156.054
Bank balances - 3,016 - 3,016
63,496 815,070 1,362,601 2,241,167
2025 2024

Financial liabiliti ost Note Rupees in thousands
Trade and other payables 1,376 22,352
Un-paid dividend 30,709 37 444
Un-claimed dividend 41,207 15,568
73292 75364
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25.7 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a going concern and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially
the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market fransactions on an arm's length
basis.

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement' requires the company to classify fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1-  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2-  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices).

Level 3-  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred.

During the year, there were ro transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair value
measurement.

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities as disclosed in note 25.4 because their carrying amounts
are reasonable approximation of fair values, except fair value of equity instruments.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values .
The table analyses financial assets measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurement is categorized:

As on June 30, 2025

Financial assets Carrying

Note ; Recurring fair value
amount

Level1 || Level2 || Level3
Rupees in thousands

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (equity securities) 6.7 58,796 58,796

As on June 30, 2024

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through :
profit or loss (equity securities) 6.7 17.426 17,426 - -

Valuation technigues and significant unobservable inputs
The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring Level 1 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair value in the statement

of financial position, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Inter-relationship between significant
unobservable inputs and fair value
measurement

Equity instruments - shares
Market approach (quoted market prices) Per share price The estimated fair value would increase
(decrease) if the price go higher (lower)
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26 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

7

28

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the future development
of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the retum on capital employed, which the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital
employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to shareholders.
The Company’s obiectives when managing capital are:

a) fo safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders; and

b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.
The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, if possible, selling
surplus property and equipment without affecting the optimal operating level and regulating its dividend payout thus maintaining smooth capital
management.

In line with the industry norms, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non current) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown
in the statement of financial position, plus net debt.

The gearing ratio of the Company is not calculated as the Company is not geared.

SEGMENT REPORTING
274 Revenue from investments represents 100% of total revenue of the Company. Therefore, there is one reportable segment as per IFRS-8.

27.2 The sales percentage by geographic region is as follows:

2025 2024
% %
Pakistan 100.00 100.00

27.3  Major revenue is dividend income from investment amounting to Rs. 401,202 million (2024: Rs. 192.275 million).
2714 Al non-current assets of the Company as at reporting date are located in Pakistan,

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include associated entities, directors and their close family members, other key management personnel, etc. The related parties of the
Company are as foliows:

Basis of relationship / (percentage

Names of Related Parties Relationship shareholding or common directorship)
Investment made in:

LSE Financial Services Limited Associate 28.03%
LSE Capital Limited Associate e 2 12.48%
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited Associate 32.40%
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Associate § % 10.00%
Digital Custodian Company Limited Associate (=] 9.99%
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited Associate 7.25%
Directors:

Mr. Muhammad Igbal Director 1.22495%:
Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chaudhry Chief Executive Officer =4 0.00630%
Ms. Aasiya Riaz Director 3 -
Ms. Minzhil Ali ; Diractor .E -
Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood Director s 0.00001%
Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir Director w 0.00057%

Mr, Zahsd Mahmmod Director




Balances with related parties are disclosed in respective notes to these financial statements, whereas significant transactions with related parties during the
year, other than those which have been disciosed elsewnere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Names of Related Parties 2025 2024
Associated companies Rupees in thousands
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited Dividend received 144,400 351
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Dividend received 84,700 51,851
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited Dividend received 35,148 52,185
Proceeds against shares received 15,852
LSE Financial Services Limited Funds given for investment in MTS - 158,000
Funds received as repayment of principle - 475,528
Investment in MTS - markup accrued . 67,417
Expenses paid by LSEFSL on behalf of the Company 17,924 10,570
Markup charged on advance given 206 -
LSE Capital Limited Advance given 162,613 101,000
Advance received back 157,000 115420
Markup charged on advance given 14,885
Payment received against investment made 7,740
Expenses paid on behalf of Company 43,813 19,873
Reimbursement of expenses to the Company 38,128 -
Equity management fee paid to the company 31,250
Dividend received from the Company 11,185
Dividend paid by the Company 48,172
Board meeting fee 3,000 3,900
Digital Custodian Company Limited Payment made against share registrar services 155
Others
LSE - Employees' Provident Fund Trust Contributicn for the year 278 2,251
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in these accounts during the year for remuneration, including benefits to chief executive, directors and
executives of the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive
Officer

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Rupees in thousands

Directors Executives Total

Manaaerial remuneraiion 5.597 6.784 - . 6.591 7.880 12188 14,664
Companv's contribution to
the provident fund trust 509 678 - - 551 788 1,060 1,466
Housing and utilities 2,798 3™ - - 3,160 4934 5,958 8,085
Meetina fees - . 3,000 3,900 - : 3,000 3,900
Others 924 114 - - 1,491 975 2,415 1,089
5,628 11,307 3,000 3,900 11,793 13877 ﬂ‘ﬁi 29,184
MNumber of persons 1 1 7 7 2 2 10 10

291 Chief Execulive is provided with the Company’s maintained vehicle

29.2 An Executive is defined as an employee, other than the chief axecutive officer and directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million

in afinancial year.
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2025 2024
Total number of employees at the period end T F
Average number of employees at year ended T 7
SHARIAH COMPLIANT DISCLOSURES

The Company's assets, liabilities, revenue, income, etc. does not fall under Sharizsh compliant business and its banking arrangements are under
the conventional mode. Hence, Shariah compliant disclosures are not applicable.

PROVIDENT FUND TRUST- RELATED PARTY

The LSE Group mantains the employees provident fund trust at group level for all its permanent employees being employed by the group
companies. All the necessary formalities as regards 1o the management of the fund and monthly contributions to the fund's bank account are
being made by all the companies at regular intervals in accordance with Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Rules formed thereof.

AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting heid on November 01, 2025.

GENERAL

Comparative figures are re-amanged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to faciitate comparison. Following re-arrangements / reclassifications
have been made in these financial statements for better presentations that do not have any impact on the profitability of the Company:

Line item From To 2024
Rupees in
thousands

Club memberships Intangible Prepayments 5852

Investment in ass Finangial Investment in associate 744,443

assels
¢ -
M
g

Chief Exec m ' Chief Financial Officer rector




LSE VENTURES LIMITED

Notice Of Annual General Meeting
November 06, 2025

NOTICE is hereby given, that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of LSE Ventures Limited (the
“Company”) will be held on Thursday, November 27t, 2025, at 9:30 a.m. at the registered office of the
Company (and via video conferencing) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 16, 2025.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2025, together with the Directors” and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

https://ventures.lse.com.pk/downloads/annual/LSEVL-
Annual-Report-2025.pdf

3. To consider and declare final cash dividend of Rs. 0.50/- per share for the year ended June 30, 2025, to
the shareholders of the Company as having been recommended by the Board of Directors.

4. To appoint External Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30t%, 2026, and to fix their
remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and if deemed appropriate, pass the following Special Resolutions with or without any
modification(s), addition(s) and/or deletion(s), as deemed appropriate by the members:

5.1 Changes in the Memorandum/Articles of Association of the Company for Enabling the Offering
of Optional Payout Arrangement to the Shareholders:

51.1 “RESOLVED THAT the approval be and is hereby accorded for the addition of the
following new clauses (Articles) as Articles 72A, 72B, 72C and 72D in the Articles of
Association of the Company and the renumbering of all of the next clauses (Articles)
accordingly:

72A  Subject to the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020, the Company
shall have the power to issue bonus shares of any class out of any reserve(s) of any
kind from time to time, and the decision of the Board to issue bonus shares, once
announced, shall not be varied, postponed, withdrawn or cancelled.

72B  The Company shall also have the power to implement an optional payout structure
whereby a shareholder may be asked to either opt for receiving cash dividend or
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LSE VENTURES LIMITED

equity dividend (as fully paid bonus shares). The Board of Directors shall have the
power to determine the price/value and procedure for such optional bonus shares.

72C A shareholder choosing optional bonus will forgo his/her/their right to cash
dividend whereafter the Company shall issue and credit such number of bonus
shares which equals the value of cash payout (dividend) for the relevant period.

72D No Dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of profits of the year or un-
distributable profits. However, bonus shares shall be paid from any reserves
including capital reserves.”

5.2 Transactions with associated companies/related parties (under Section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017):

5.2.1 “RESOLVED THAT the approval be and is hereby accorded to fix the upper limit of the
Company’s investments/financing with associated companies/related parties with the
condition that any investment (against equity on market price/right shares
subscription/initial capital, as the case may be) shall not exceed PKR 600 Mn, and any
advance/financing/loan shall not be below the rate of six (6) months KIBOR+1%. Similarly,
any disposal of the already held equity or divestment from any associated company shall
not be less than the market price or the value certified by a firm of Chartered
Accountants.”

5.2.2 “FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in light of the above, the Board of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to approve transactions with associated companies / related parties,
which may be carried out during the financial year ending June 30, 2026.”

5.2.3 “FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all transactions with associated companies / related
parties shall be placed before the shareholders for ratification in the subsequent general
body meetings.”

524  “RESOLVED THAT the related party transactions as provided in the relevant notes of the
accounts for the period ended June 30, 2025, be and are hereby approved/ratified.”

5.3 Equity Management Fee to LSE Capital Limited

5.3.1 “Resolved that the payment of an annual equity management fee at the rate of two percent
(2%) of the Company’s paid-up capital to LSE Capital Limited, be and is hereby approved,
with the specific approval that this arrangement shall continue until its
modification/cancellation through any subsequent special resolution of the shareholders
of the Company.”

5.4 Ratification of the termination of MBO:
5.4.1 “RESOLVED THAT the members hereby ratify the decision of the Board dated Jun 30,
2025, about the termination of the Mutual Buy Out Agreement, having been previously
approved by the general body in the meeting held on Nov 27, 2025.”

5.5 Authorizing the Company Secretary to Implement all Special Resolutions passed in today’s AGM:

5.5.1 RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary, be and is hereby authorized to take all
necessary steps and execute all necessary documents towards fulfillment of all legal and
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LSE VENTURES LIMITED

corporate requirements involved, and to file all requisite documents with the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose
giving full effect to and implementing the letter, spirit and intent of the foregoing
resolutions.”

The members are requested to refer to the notes enclosed with these agenda papers.

In addition to dispatch of this notice to the shareholders, this notice has also been placed on the Company's
website (http://www.lse.com.pk).

Issued under the authorization of the Board of Directors of:

-Sd-

Muhammad Sajjad Hyder
Company Secretary
(sajjad@lse.com.pk)

Annual Report — 2024



http://www.lse.com.pk/

LSE VENTURES LIMITED

Notes on the Ordinary and Special Business of the Company

1. SECP has granted an extension of 30 days to hold AGM up to Nov 27, 2025 vide its letter No.
SMD/PRDD/Comp/(146)/2024/61 dated October 8, 2025.

2. Book Closure:
The Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed, and no transfer of shares will be accepted
forregistration from November 21, 2025, to November 27, 2025 (both daysinclusive). Anytransfer request
received by the office of the share registrar of the Company by the close of business on November 20%
2025, will be treated in time for the purpose of attendance in the AGM.

3. Availability of Audited Financial Statements:
In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017, and pursuant to S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21, 2023, the financial statements of the Company have been uploaded on the website of the
Company in addition to annual and quarterly financial statements for the prior years and can be
downloaded from the above given web link and QR enabled code.

4. For Attending the Meeting
a. Inthe case of individuals, the account holder concerned or the sub-account holder along with the
CDC statement of his/her holding, shall be able to attend the meeting by showing original
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the
meeting.
b. In the case of a corporate entity, the authorization letters including the resolution/ power of
attorney from the Board of Directors along with the specimen signatures of the nominee shall be
required for attendance.

5. Proxies/Authorizations:

a. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint another member as his/her
proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her.

b. The proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. The CDC Accounts Holders will further
have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the
SECP.

c. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two people whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form, and as per the requirements mentioned in the attached form.

d. Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

e. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

f. In case of corporate entities, the authorization letter including the resolution/ power of attorney
from the board of directors, along with the specimen signature of the nominee shall be required
to be submitted.

g. The specimen of the proxy and the authorization forms for the AGM have been placed on the
Company’s website (http://www.lse.com.pk) and also attached to the notice of the meeting.

6. E-Voting & Voting through Postal Ballot:
The members are hereby notified that pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 (the
“Regulations”), amended through Notification dated December 05, 2022, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”), wherein, SECP has directed all the listed companies to
provide the right to vote through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members for the

purpose of election of Directors and for any other agenda item subject to the requirement of Section
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143 an d144 of the Act, in accordance with the requirements and procedure contained in the aforesaid
Regulations.

7. Video Conference Facility:

In accordance with Section 132(2) of the Act, if the Company receives consent from the members
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a geographical location to participate in
the meeting through video conference at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the AGM, the
Company will arrange the video conference facility in that city subject to the availability of such
facility in that city.

8. Online Meeting Link
Online meeting link and login credentials will be shared with only those members/proxies whose

emails, containing all the required particulars, are received at the given email address
(sajjad@lse.com.pk) by 05:00 pm on Monday, November 24, 2025.

9. Change in Address and CNIC:
The members are requested to notify any change in their address and contact details, as well as the

attested photocopy of their valid CNICs, in case of the book entry securities in CDS to their respective
participants and in case of physical shares to the registrar of the Company, by quoting their folio
numbers and name of the Company at the below mentioned address of the Company’s Share
Registrar, if not earlier notified/submitted:

M/s F.D Registrar Services (Pvt.) Limited
17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower - A, 11 Chundrigar Road, Karachi
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Statement Of Material Facts Under Section 134(3) Of The Companies
Act, 2017

The statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business items to be transacted at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, November 27, 2025.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Agenda Item # 5: Approval of Special Resolutions

5.1 The proposed changes are being made to implement an optional payout arrangement for the benefit
of investors. The Company can only offer an optional payout arrangement if the Articles of
Association of the Company contain such provisions. The idea behind this change is that in future,
the Company will pay either the cash dividend or in-kind dividend to the shareholders. Only those
opting for the issuance of bonus shares will be given bonus shares equal to the cash payout. Rest of
the shareholders shall be provided cash dividend.

5.2 This agenda relates to the transactions with associated companies/related parties [under Section 199
of the Companies Act, 2017 as well as Regulation 5(5) of the Companies (Investment in Associated
Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017].

In pursuance to Regulation No. 3 (3) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or
Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 under SRO 1240(1)/2017 dated 6 December 2017, the
directors of the Company have carried out due diligence for the proposed investment in its
associated company/associated undertakings before sending this recommendation for the member’s
approval.

Moreover, the transactions conducted with the related parties have to be approved by the Board of
Directors duly recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant to clause 15 of
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. in order to promote
transparent business practices, the shareholders are to authorize the Board of Directors to approve
transactions with the related parties from time-to-time on case-to-case basis during a year.
Accordingly, these transactions are being placed before the shareholders in this meeting for their
formal ratification.

All transactions with related parties to be ratified have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025. The Company carries out
transactions as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transaction with related parties in the
normal course of business. The nature of relationships with these related parties has been indicated
in the relevant notes of the account. The Directors are interested in the resolution only to the extent
of their shareholding and having their common directorships in such related parties.

Similarly, the Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year
ending on June 30, 2026, as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related parties’
in the normal course of business. In order to promote transparent business practices, the
shareholders are required to authorize the Board of Directors to approve transactions with the
related parties from time-to-time and on case-to-case basis for the year ending on June 30, 2026,
which transactions shall be deemed to be approved by the Shareholders These transactions shall be
placed before the shareholders in the next AGM for their formal approval/ratification.
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Note:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

None of the Directors of the Company have any direct or indirect interest in this special business
except to the extent of their respective shareholding in the Company.

(a) DISCLOSURES FOR ALL TYPES OF INVESMENTS:

(A) Regarding associated company or associated undertaking: -

Requirement

Name of Associated
Company or associated
undertaking

Basis of relationship

Earnings per share for the
last three years

Break-up value per share,
based on latest audited
financial statements
Financial position,
including main items of
statement of financial
position and profit and
loss account on the basis
of its latest financial
statements

In case of investment in
relation to a project of
associated company or
associated  undertaking
that has not commenced
operations,

(B) General Disclosures:

Information

LSE Capital Limited

Associated Company
with 12.48%
shareholding of
LSEVL.

LSECL has 26.82%
shareholding in
LSEVL.

Common directorship
Year 2025: Rs. 1.32
Year 2024: Rs. 2.26
Year 2023: Rs. 3.98

Rs. 17.48 as on June 30,
2025.

Audited Financial
Statements of LSECL
for the year ended
June 30, 2025 available
at:
http://www.lse.com.pk

Not applicable

LSE Financial
Services Limited

Associated
Company with 28%
shareholding of
LSEVL.
LSEFSL has 5.5%
shareholding in
LSECL.
Common
directorship

Year 2025: Rs. 0.51
Year 2024: Rs. 1.72
Year 2023: Rs. 0.07

Rs. 12.81 as on June
30, 2025.

Audited Financial
Statements of
LSEFSL for the year
ended June 30, 2025
available at:
http://www.lse.com.

LSE SPAC-1 Limited

Wholly owned
company of LSECL.

Common
directorship

Formed in 2025
Year 2025: Rs. (1.43)

Rs. 9.55 as on June
30, 2025.

Audited Financial
Statements of LSE-
SPAC for the year
ended June 30, 2025
available at:
http://www.lse.com.

pk

Not applicable

pk

Not applicable

(i) Maximum Up to Rs. 600 million as equity investments for the purchase of shares, disposal
aggregate of shares and short-term loans/advances for any one or more associated
amount of = companies in aggregate.
investment to be
made
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(ii)

Purpose,

benefits likely to
accrue to the
investing

company and its
members from
such investment
and period of

investment.

(iii) Source of funds

(iv)

(v)

to be utilized for

investment and
where the
investment is

intended to be
made using
borrowed funds;
(I)  Justification
for
investment
through
borrowing;
Details of
collateral,
guarantees
provided
and assets
pledged for
obtaining
such funds;

uy

and
Cost benefit
analysis;

(T1I)
Salient features
of the agreement
(if any) with
associated
company or
associated
undertaking with
regards to
proposed
investment.
Direct or indirect
interest of
directors,
sponsors,
majority
shareholders

and their

To meet the working
capital requirement of the
Company.

Through internal sources.

To meet the working
capital requirement of the

Company.

Through internal sources.

To meet the working
capital requirement of the

Company.

Through internal sources.

The format of LSE’s standard financial facilitation agreements with the relevant

Associated company shall be followed.

Following Directors only
have indirect interest in
the associated companies
due to common
directorship/shareholding
but have no direct interest
in the transactions:

Following Directors only
have indirect interest in
the associated companies
due to
directorship/shareholding
but have no direct interest
in the transactions

common

Following Directors only
have indirect interest in
the associated companies
due to
directorship/shareholding
but have no direct interest

common

in the transactions
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relatives, if any,

in the associates’ Mr. Aftab Ahmad Mr. Aftab Ahmad Mr. Aftab Ahmad
company or = Ms. Aasiya Riaz Ms. Aasiya Riaz Ms. Aasiya Riaz
associated Mr. Muhammad Igbal

undertaking or
the transaction
under
consideration:
(vi) In case any There has not been any impairment or write off in any investment. All investments
investment in  in the associated entities have been made on an arm’s length basis. It is also

associated confirmed that all past transactions have been made at the required returns.
company or
associated
undertaking has
already been
made, the
performance
review of such
investment
including
complete
information /

justification  for
any impairment
or write offs.

(vii) |Any other = Not Applicable
important details
necessary for the
members to
understand  the
transaction

(b) In case of equity investment, following disclosures in addition to those provided under clause

(a) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 3 shall be made:-

(i)  Maximum price at which Market price or face value.
securities will be acquired = The transaction shall be disclosed to the market as and when executed

(ii) | In case the purchase price is Transactions only at market price/face value
higher than market value in
case of listed securities and
fair value in case of unlisted

securities, justification
thereof
(iii) Maximum  number of Depends on the market conditions

securities to be acquired
(iv) Number of securities and | If subscription is to be made against right shares, then this information
percentage thereof held shall be provided accordingly.
before and after the
proposed investment
(v) Current and preceding Not Applicable
twelve weeks” weighted
average market price where
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investment is proposed to

be made in listed securities;

and

(vi)  Fair value determined in Not Applicable

terms and sub-regulation

(1) of regulation 5 for

investments in unlisted

securities

(c) In case of Investments in the form of Loan and Advances and guarantees:

(i) Category wise number of Investment by way of subscription through right offer or as short-
investments term loan / advance not exceeding Rs. 600 million in any one or more
associated companies in aggregate.
(ii) = Average borrowing cost of the No borrowing obtained by LSEVL
investing Company
(iii) Rate of interest, markup 6M KIBOR+1%
profit, fees or commission etc.
to be charged by investing

company

(iv) Particulars of collateral or No collateral in case subscription through the right shares.
security to be obtained in Assignment of receivables of the borrowing company
relation to the proposed
investment

(v) If the investment -carry No Conversion option
conversion features:

(vi) Repayment schedule and As and when the advance/loan shall be extended, customary
terms and conditions of loans repayment schedule shall be agreed

or advances to be given to the
associated ~ company  or
associated undertaking

5.3 The Company only has a handful of employees and all finance, corporate secretariat and
compliance-related functions as well as the office accommodation, facilities, utilities, security and
janitorial services are being obtained from LSE Capital Limited. Since the establishment of the
Company, the arrangement was to pay for the above in the shape of equity management fee at the
rate of 2% of the Company’s paid-up capital. This matter also relates to the transactions with
associated companies/related parties under Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, hence approval
by way of special resolution from the shareholders is required. This approval provides that until
this arrangement is not specifically amended, modified or canceled; the arrangement shall remain
in place.

5.4 Subsequent to the approval/authorization from the shareholders of the Mutual Buy Out Agreement
(MBO), the Company signed the MBO dated Jan 12, 2025. However, after making only one payment
of PKR 51 million, the obligations for further payment as per Schedule B of the Agreement were not
fulfilled. Besides, there were many other violations/deviations of the agreement by the other party
as well from the counterparty (PACRA). Hence, under the powers granted by the shareholders, the
Board of Directors terminated the said MBO on Jun 30, 2025. Now this special resolution is being
proposed to solicit the ratification of the decision of the Board by the shareholders as a special
resolution. The matter has been explained in more detail in the Directors Report.

5.5 This resolution is being proposed to authorize the Company Secretary to implement all proposed
special resolutions after their adoption/approval by the shareholders.
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Pattern of Shareholding

as at June 30, 2025

Number of Shareholding Slabs Total Number
Shareholders From To of Shares Held

885 1 - 100 14,752
131 101 - 500 37,494
46 501 - 1000 39,557
60 1001 - 5000 168,177
18 5001 - 10000 141,543
3 10001 - 15000 38,000
5 15001 - 20000 86,822
2 20001 - 25000 44,850
3 25001 - 30000 85,375
1 30001 - 35000 35,000
1 35001 - 40000 35,500
4 45001 - 50000 195,681
2 55001 - 60000 120,000
1 60001 - 65000 61,515
1 65001 - 70000 67,824
3 70001 - 75000 217,660
1 75001 - 80000 78,000
1 80001 - 85000 84,280
3 100001 - 105000 304,915
1 110001 - 115000 113,000
1 125001 - 130000 126,422
1 130001 - 135000 134,850
1 145001 - 150000 150,000
1 150001 - 155000 150,540
1 165001 - 170000 168,562
3 170001 - 175000 518,751
1 180001 - 185000 184,000
1 200001 - 205000 202,275
1 210001 - 215000 210,703
1 215001 - 220000 219,500
1 225001 - 230000 228,000
1 240001 - 245000 244,000
1 260001 - 265000 262,174
1 270001 - 275000 272,000
1 275001 - 280000 277,186
2 290001 - 295000 589,968
1 295001 - 300000 300,000
1 310001 - 315000 312,040
1 325001 - 330000 329,545

43 335001 - 340000 14,496,231
1 385001 - 390000 387,055

4 470001 - 475000 1,887,894
490001 - 495000 490,076
495001 - 500000 500,000

44 505001 - 510000 22,250,184
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1 515001 520000 518,363

1 595001 600000 600,000

1 635001 640000 639,311

1 670001 675000 674,249

1 690001 695000 693,182

7 705001 710000 4,955,727

1 755001 760000 758,530

1 820001 825000 822,810
34 840001 845000 28,655,567

1 870001 875000 871,925

1 910001 915000 915,000

1 975001 980000 977,660

2 995001 1000000 2,000,000

3 1000001 1005000 3,002,430

1 1075001 1080000 1,077,660

1 1145001 1150000 1,146,135

3 1175001 1180000 3,539,804

1 1180001 1185000 1,181,331

1 1185001 1190000 1,187,600

1 1995001 2000000 2,000,000

1 2200001 2205000 2,204,444

2 2995001 3000000 5,991,722

1 20150001 20155000 20,150,943

1 48170001 48175000 48,171,586

1357 179,597,880
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Categories of Shareholders
as at June 30, 2025

Shares
Sr. Categories of Shareholders Held Percentage
1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, their Spouse(s) and Minor Children, if 23,490,889 13.08
any.
2 Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties 48,172,038 26.82
3 Executives 126 0.00
3 NIT and ICP 15,465 0.01
4 Banks I?evelopment Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Financial 844755 0.47
Institutions
5 Insurance Companies 100 0.00
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 842,810 0.47
Joint Stock Companies 81,305,417 45.27
8 Others 913,006 0.51
7 General Public
a) Local 24,010,640 13.37
b) Foreign 2,634 0.00
179,597,880 100.00
Shareholders holding 10% Shares or more
1 LSE Capital Limited 48,171,586 26.82
2 Mrs. Humera Muhammad Igbal 20,150,943 11.22
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I/We,

Ventures Limited, hereby appoint

Form of Proxy

, the undersigned member, being a member of LSE

, the undersigned proxy, as my

proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the AGM of the Company to be held on November 27, 2025

and/or at any adjournment thereof.

The Member: The Proxy:
Signature:
Signature:
Name:
Signature over CNIC No.:
Revenue Stamp of Rs. 50/- Father's name-
Address:
Seal/Stamp of the Company
Name and Designation of the Appointer: Date:
CNIC No.:
Father’s name:
Address:
Date:
CDC Participant ID No.:
CDC Account/Sub-Account No.:
No. of Shares held:
Witness 1: Witness 2:
Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
CNIC No.: CNIC No.:
Address: Address:

Notes:

1. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not later
than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and

witnessed.

2. CDC beneficial owners and Proxy Holders must bring with them their Computerize National
Identity Cards (CNIC)/Passports in original to prove his/her identity and in case of Proxy, CDC
beneficial owners and Proxy Holders must enclose an attested copy of their CNIC/Passport with

Proxy Form.

3. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee (unless it has been provided earlier) should be attached with the proxy

form.
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AUTHORIZATION FOR CORPORATE MEMBER
(ON THE LETTERHEAD OF THE COMPANY)

Date:

The Secretary

LSE Ventures Limited.
Lahore.

Sub: Authorization to attend the AGM of LSEVL on behalf of Body Corporate (Member) of the

LSEVL
Dear Sir,
Please be informed that Mr./Mrs./Ms. S/o W/o D/o holder of CNIC
No. , has been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of our company vide resolution
dated to participate and vote on resolutions included in the agenda of the notice of AGM of
LSE Ventures Limited scheduled for November 27, 2025 or at any date adjourned/rescheduled thereof.
Resolution of the Board dated duly signed and stamped is attached herewith for reference
and record.
Yours truly,
Authorized Signatory Seal of the Company

SPECIMEN RESOLUTION

(ON THE LETTERHEAD OF THE COMPANY)

The following resolution has been passed by the Board of Directors of (Name of the Company) in its
meeting held on , at

Resolved that Mr./Mrs./Ms. S/o W/o D/o be and is hereby authorized on
behalf of the Company to participate and vote for resolutions included in the agenda of the notice of AGM
of LSE Ventures Limited scheduled for November 27, 2025 or at any date adjourned/rescheduled thereof.

Certified True Copy.

Authorized Signatory Seal of the Company
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